

#### UNIVERSITY OF KERALA (Re-accredited by NAAC with 'A' Grade)

#### Minutes of the meeting of the Senate held on Thursday, the 28<sup>th</sup> March 2019

:

:

Time Place of Meeting 08.30 a.m. University Buildings, Thiruvananthapuram.

#### Members Present :

- 1. Prof (Dr).V.P. Mahadevan Pillai Vice-Chancellor (in the Chair)
- 2. Prof (Dr).P.P Ajayakumar Pro-Vice-Chancellor
- 3. Dr. S. Nazeeb
- 4. Dr.P. Rajesh Kumar
- 5. Dr. K.B. Manoj
- 6. Dr.B. Unnikrishnan Nair
- 7. Sri. M. Sreekumar
- 8. Dr. K.R. Kavitha
- 9. Sri. M. Harikrishnan
- 10. Adv. K.H. Babujan
- 11. Dr. Shaji.K
- 12. Sri. Shijukhan. J.S
- 13. Adv. G. Sugunan
- 14. Sri. M. Lenin Lal

The Senate was called to order at 08.30. a.m. by Prof (Dr). V.P. Mahadevan Pillai, Hon'ble Vice Chancellor.

The Vice Chancellor welcomed all the members.

#### **Condolences and Felicitations**

#### <u>അനുശോചനം</u>

സംസ്ഥാന മുൻ തദ്ദേശ സ്വയംഭരണവകുപ്പ് മന്ത്രി വി.ജെ തങ്കപ്പൻ, പ്രമുഖ തെലുങ്ക് സംവിധായ കൻ കോടി രാമകൃഷ്ണ, യുവ ചലച്ചിത്ര സംവിധായക നയന സൂര്വൻ, മുതിർന്ന കോൺഗ്രസ് നേതാവും മുൻ എം.എൽ.എയുമായ റോസമ്മ ചാക്കോ, പ്രമുഖ നാടൻകലാ ഗവേഷകനും ഫോക്ലോർ അക്കാഡമി മുൻ ചെയർമാനുമായിരുന്ന ഡോ.എം.വി വിഷ്ണുനമ്പൂതിരി, മുൻ കേന്ദ്ര പ്രതിരോധമന്ത്രിയും ഗോവ മുഖ്യമന്ത്രിയുമായ മനോഹർ പരീക്കർ, പ്രമുഖ ചലച്ചിത്രസംവിധായകൻ രാജശേഖരൻ, എഴുത്തുകാരി അഷിത, പബ്ലിക് റിലേഷൻസ് മുൻ ഡയറക്ടറും ഭാഷാപണ്ഡിതനും സാഹിത്യകാരനുമായ വി.കെ നാരാ യണൻ എന്നിവരുടെ നിര്യാണത്തിൽ ഈ യോഗം അനുശോചനം രേഖപ്പെടുത്തുന്നു.

#### അനുമോദനം

മികച്ച നടനുളള സംസ്ഥാന ചലച്ചിത്ര അവാർഡ് നേടിയ ജയസൂര്യയും സൗബിൻ ഷാഹിറും, മികച്ച നടിയായി തെരഞ്ഞെടുക്കപ്പെട്ട നിമിഷ സജയൻ, മികച്ച സംവിധായകനായി തെരഞ്ഞെടുക്കപ്പെട്ട ശ്യാമപ്രസാദ്, ബാലസാഹിത്യ ഇൻസ്റ്റിറ്റ്യൂട്ട് ഏർപ്പെടുത്തിയ പാലാ കെ.എം.മാത്യു പുരസ്കാരം നേടിയ ഏഴാച്ചേരി രാമചന്ദ്രൻ, 2018 ലെ മികച്ച നടനുളള ഓസ്കാർ അവാർഡ് നേടിയ റാമി മാലെക്ക്, മികച്ച നടി യായി തെരഞ്ഞെടുക്കപ്പെട്ട ഒലീവിയ കോൾമാൻ, മികച്ച ഹൃസ്വ ഡോക്യുമെന്ററിക്കുളള പുരസ്കാരം നേടിയ ഇന്ത്യൻ ഹൃസ്വചിത്രം ''പീരിയഡ് എൻഡ് ഓഫ് സെന്റൻസ്'', കെ.കെ ബിർള ഫൗഷേന്റെ വ്യാസ് സമ്മാൻ പുരസ്കാരം നേടിയ ലീലാധർ ജഗൂഡി, കെ.പി ഉദയഭാനു പുരസ്കാരം നേടിയ ചലച്ചിത്ര പിന്നണി ഗായകൻ വേണുഗോപാൽ, കടമ്മനിട്ട രാമകൃഷ്ണൻ പുരസ്കാരവും സി.വി കുഞ്ഞുരാമൻ സാഹിത്യ പുരസ്കാരവും നേടിയ സുഗതകുമാരി, മഹാകവി പി.കുഞ്ഞിരാമൻ നായർ പുരസ്കാരം നേടിയ സുനിൽ പി ഇളയിടം, ഇ.വി കൃഷ്ണപിളള സാഹിത്യ പുരസ്കാരം നേടിയ എ.ഡി.ജി.പി ബി സന്ധ്യ, ബഹിരാകാശത്തു വെച്ച് ഉപഗ്രഹങ്ങളെ തകർക്കുക എന്ന ലക്ഷ്യം A- SAT ലൂടെ വിജയകര മാക്കി. ഇത്തരം പരീക്ഷണം നടത്തുന്ന നാലാമത്തെ രാജ്യമാണ് ഇന്ത്യ. ശക്തിമാൻ പരീക്ഷണത്തിന് നേതൃത്വം നൽകിയ ശാസ്ത്രജ്ഞരെ ഈ യോഗം അനുമോദിക്കുന്നു.

(I) Business brought forward by the Vice-Chancellor and the Syndicate.

#### 01. Award of Degrees, Diplomas, Titles and Certificates.

(C.E/D.D)

# The following resolution moved by Dr. P. Rajesh Kumar, Member, Syndicate and Convener, Standing Committee of the Syndicate on Examinations and seconded by Dr.S.Nazeeb, Member, Syndicate was unanimously adopted by the House.

"That, all candidates who have passed the various examinations under the different Faculties and also those who carried on research under the prescribed conditions and who have been adjudged worthy, to be awarded the Research Degrees under the various faculties and whom the Syndicate during the period from 18<sup>th</sup> February, 2019 to 27<sup>th</sup> March, 2019 on the report of the examiners, has certified to be qualified to receive the respective Titles, Diplomas, Certificates and Degrees and those students of Autonomous Colleges who have successfully completed their course of study and are duly recommended by the Governing Council of the respective Autonomous Colleges during the aforesaid period for award of Degrees be admitted to those Titles, Diplomas, Certificates and Degrees and in token thereof they may be presented with the respective Titles, Diplomas, Certificates and Degrees"

# 02. Upgrading the Centre for Learning Disabilities and Difficulties as Department of Disability Studies –Consideration of-reg. (Ac.L)

The Syndicate at its meeting held on 13/06/2017, resolved that the action taken by the Vice-Chancellor in having approved the recommendations of the meeting of the Budget Implementation Cell held on 27/04/2017 be noted.

The proposal for upgrading the Centre for Learning Disabilities and Difficulties (CLDD) to Department of Disability Studies has been included in the Budget Speech 2017-2018, vide item no. I-12.

The Syndicate at its meeting held on 13/06/2017, vide sl. no.11 in item no. 28.28.02 considered the proposal for upgrading the Centre for Learning Disabilities and Difficulties (CLDD) to Department of Disability Studies and resolved to authorise the concerned to submit the proposal on the above matter and to place the same before the Standing Committee of the Syndicate on Planning and Development, for being presented before the UGC for funding.

The detailed proposal on the above subject matter was placed before the Standing Committee of the Syndicate on Planning and Development held on 03/07/2018. The Syndicate at its meeting held on 11/07/2018, vide item no. 02.86.07, resolved to approve the proposal for constituting Department of Disability Studies by upgrading the Centre for Learning Disabilities and Difficulties.

As per the Kerala University First Statutes, 1977, a University Department of Study and Research is one established by the Statute and under the direct control of the University as specified in Statute 1, Chapter 37, "University Departments", of the Kerala University First Statutes, 1977. Hence the constitution /upgradation of a new Department can be effected only through an amendment to the Kerala University First Statutes, 1977. As such, an amendment proposal for constituting a new Department, namely "Department of Disability Studies" after the name of "Department of Kerala Studies" in sequential order is placed herewith.

The amendment to the Kerala University First Statutes, 1977, to be placed before the Senate is as follows:

#### AMENDMENT PROPOSAL

"That, in Chapter 37 under the heading 'University Departments', in Statute 2 after item 33 'P' the following item shall be added.

33.Q-" Department of Disability Studies".

The above amendment to the Kerala University First Statutes, 1977 is laid before the Senate for consideration and adoption as envisaged under section 35(3) of the Kerala University Act, 1974.

The House considered and resolved to refer back the matter to the Syndicate to study in detail.

# 03. Amendment to the Regulations relating to Unitary Degree Course in Law – Consideration of-reg. (Ac.L)

The Academic Council at its meeting held on 19th May 2015, vide item no. 61, considered and resolved to approve the recommendations of the Standing Committee, the action taken by the Vice-Chancellor subject reporting to the Academic Council, in having approved the minutes of the additional meeting of the Faculty of Law held on 12/11/2014 regarding the amendment to the Regulations to Unitary Degree Course in Law. U.O.No. Ac AIII/3/FoL-Add1/I-vi-a/2014 dated 04/02/2015 was issued in this regard. The Academic Council at its meeting held on 5<sup>th</sup> October, 2018 vide item no. I.06 considered and resolved to approve the amendment to the Regulations relating to Unitary Degree Course in Law.

The proposed amendment is as follows.

#### **Amendment Proposal**

"That, in the Regulations relating to Unitary Degree Course in Law under Clause 8 the following be incorporated as (i):

# (i)First Class shall be awarded to candidates who pass the whole examination with 60% or above marks along with the immediate junior batch and not thereafter.

The amendment proposal to the Regulations relating to Unitary Degree Course in Law is placed before the Senate for consideration and adoption as envisaged under Section 39 (i) of the Kerala University Act, 1974.

#### The House considered and resolved to refer the matter to the Syndicate.

# 04. Amendment to the Regulations relating to Integrated LL.B Degree Course in Law Consideration of-reg. (Ac.L)

The Academic Council at its meeting held on 19th May 2015, vide item no. 61, considered and resolved to approve the recommendations of the Standing Committee, the action taken by the Vice-Chancellor subject reporting to the Academic Council, in having approved the minutes of the additional meeting of the Faculty of Law held on 12/11/2014 regarding the amendment to the Regulations relating to Integrated LL.B Degree Course in Law. U.O.No. Ac AIII/3/FoL-Add1/I-vi-a/2014 dated 04/02/2015 was issued in this regard. The Academic Council at its meeting held on 5<sup>th</sup> October, 2018 vide item no. I.11 considered and resolved to approve the proposal regarding the amendment to the Regulations relating to Integrated LL.B Degree Course in Law.

#### **Amendment Proposal**

"That, in the Regulations relating to Integrated LL.B Degree Course in Law under Clause 8 the following be incorporated as (i):

# (i)First Class shall be awarded to candidates who pass the whole examination with 60% or above marks along with the immediate junior batch and not thereafter.

The amendment proposal to the Regulations relating to Integrated LL.B Course in Law is placed before the Senate for consideration and adoption as envisaged under Section 39 (i) of the Kerala University Act, 1974.

The House considered and resolved to refer the matter to the Syndicate.

05. Amendment to Kerala University (Conditions of Service of Teachers and members of Non- Teaching Staff)\_First Statutes, 1979, intune with UGC Regulations, 2010 – Consideration of -reg. (Ac.L)

The Syndicate at its meeting held on 18/03/2017 vide item no. 26.24.01 considered and resolved to agree with the recommendations of the Standing Committee of the Syndicate on Teaching and Non- Teaching Staff of Private Colleges held on 03/02/2017 regarding proposed amendment in Kerala University (Conditions of Service of Teachers and members of Non- Teaching Staff) First Statutes, 1979, in tune with UGC Regulations, 2010.

As per the decision of the meeting of the Syndicate held on 28/09/2018 vide item no. 05.53.01 and item no. 05.73 resolved to place the whole matter regarding the implementation of UGC Regulations 2010 before the Academic Council.

The meeting of the Academic Council held on 5/10/2018 vide item no. 96 considered and resolved that the effective date of implementation of UGC Regulations 2010, shall be treated as implemented in the University w.e.f 23/02/2016, the date of judgment of the Hon'ble High Court of Kerala.

The existing provisions of the Kerala University (Conditions of Service of Teachers and members of Non- Teaching Staff)- First Statutes, 1979, will prevail except the amendments proposed in tune with UGC Regulations, 2010.

The Syndicate at its meeting held on 11/03/2019 vide item no.06.34 considered and resolved that the necessary amendments be made to the Kerala University First Statues, 1979.

The amendment proposal to the Kerala University (Conditions of Service of Teachers and members of Non-Teaching Staff) First Statutes, 1979, in tune with UGC Regulations is as follows:

#### AMENDMENT PROPOSAL-1

"That, in Chapter 2 "Conditions of Service of Teachers in Private Colleges", Statute 4 the title "Constitution of Selection Committee for appointment" may be substituted as :

#### "Constitution of Selection Committee Quorum of meetings".

#### AMENDMENT PROPOSAL-2

"That, in Chapter 2 "Conditions of Service of Teachers in Private Colleges", under Statute 4 "Constitution of Selection Committee Quorum of meetings" the provisions numbered as clause 5.0.0 to 6.8.0 as per the UGC Regulations 2010 may be substituted.

The UGC has evolved the following guidelines on: (a) Constitution of Selection Committees for selection of Assistant Professor, Associate Professor, Professor, Assistant Librarian, Deputy Librarian, Librarian, Assistant Director of Physical Education and Sports, Deputy Director of Physical Education and Sports and Director of Physical Education and Sports; and (b) specified selection procedures for direct recruitment and Career Advancement Schemes Regulations for teachers and other academic staff in universities and colleges.

# **Selection Committee Specifications:**

Assistant Professor in the University:

(a) The Selection Committee for the post of Assistant Professor in the University shall have the following composition.

- 1. The Vice Chancellor shall be the Chairperson of the Selection Committee.
- 2. Three experts in the concerned subject nominated by the Vice Chancellor out of the panel of names approved by the relevant statutory body of the university concerned.
- 3. Dean of the concerned Faculty, wherever applicable
- 4. Head/Chairperson of the Department/School.
- 5. An academician nominated by the Visitor/Chancellor, wherever applicable.
- 6. An academician representing SC/ST/OBC/Minority/Women/Differently-abled categories to be nominated by the Vice Chancellor or Acting Vice Chancellor, if any of the candidates representing these categories is the applicant and if any of the above members of the selection committee do not belong to that category.
- (b) At least four members, including two outside subject experts shall constitute the quorum.

# Associate Professor in the University

(a) The Selection Committee for the post of Associate Professor in the University shall have the following composition:

- 1. Vice Chancellor to be the Chairperson of the Selection Committee.
- 2. An academician who is the nominee of the Visitor/Chancellor, wherever applicable.
- 3. Three experts in the concerned subject/field nominated by the Vice Chancellor out of the panel of names approved by the relevant statutory body of the university concerned.
- 4. Dean of the faculty, wherever applicable.
- 5. Head/Chairperson of the Department/School.
- 6 An academician representing SC/ST/OBC/ Minority / Women / Differently-abled categories, if any of candidates representing these categories is the applicant, to be nominated by the Vice Chancellor, if any of the above members of the selection committee do not belong to that category.

At least four members, including two outside subject experts, shall constitute the quorum.

#### **Professor in the University**

The composition of the Selection Committee for the post of Professor in the University shall be similar in composition as that for the post of Associate Professor set out in Clause 5.1.2 above.

#### Assistant Professor in Colleges including Private Colleges:

(a) The Selection Committee for the post of Assistant Professor in Colleges including

Private Colleges shall have the following composition:

- 1. Chairperson of the Governing Body of the college or his/her nominee from among the members of the,Governing body to be the Chairperson of the Selection Committee.
- 2. The Principal of the College.
- 3. Head of the Department of the concerned subject in the College.
- 4. Two nominees of the Vice Chancellor of the affiliating university of whom one should be a subject expert. In case of colleges notified/declared as minority educational institutions, two nominees of the Chairperson of the college from out of a panel of five names, preferably from minority communities, recommended by the Vice Chancellor of the affiliating university from the list of experts suggested by the relevant statutory body of the college, of whom one should be a subject expert.
- 5. Two subject-experts not connected with the college to be nominated by the Chairperson of the governing body of the college out of a panel of five names recommended by the Vice Chancellor from the list of subject experts approved by the relevant statutory body of the university concerned. In case of colleges notified/declared as minority educational Institutions,- two subject experts not connected with the University to be nominated by the Chairperson of the Governing Body of the College out of the pane! of five names, preferably from minority communities, recommended by the Vice Chancellor from the fist of subject experts approved by the relevant statutory body of the College.
- 6. An academician representing SC/ST/OBC/Minority/Women/Differentlyabled categories, if any of candidates representing these categories is the applicant, to be nominated by the Vice Chancellor, if any of the above members of the selection committee do not belong to that category.
- (b) To constitute the quorum for the meeting, five of which at least two must be from out of the three subject-experts shall be present.
- (c) For all levels of teaching positions in Government colleges, the State Public Services Commissions / Teacher Recruitment Boards must invite three subject experts for which the concerned University, be involved in the selection process

by the State PSC.

(d) For all **levels** of teaching positions in Constituent college(s) of a university, the selection **committee** norms shall **be** similar to that of the posts of departments of the university.

#### Associate Professor in Colleges including Private Colleges

- (a) The Selection Committee for the post of Assistant Professor in Colleges including Private Colleges shall have the following composition:
  - 1. The Chairperson of the Governing Body or his or her nominee, from among the members of the Governing body to be the Chairperson of the Selection Committee.
  - 2. The Principal of the College.
  - 3. The Head of the Department of the concerned subject from the college.
  - 4. Two University representatives nominated by the Vice Chancellor, one of whom will be the Dean of College Development Council or equivalent position in the University, and the other must be expert in the concerned subject. In case of Colleges notified/declared as minority educational institutions, two nominees of the Chairperson of the College from out of a panel of five names, preferably from minority communities, recommended by the Vice-Chancellor of the affiliating university from the list of experts suggested by the relevant statutory body of the college of whom one should be a subject expert.
  - 5. Two subject-experts not connected with the college to be nominated by the Chairperson of the governing body of the college out of a panel of five names recommended by the Vice Chancellor from the list of subject experts approved by

<sup>A:</sup> the relevant statutory body of the university concerned. In case of colleges notified/declared as minority educational Institutions, two subject experts not connected with the University to be nominated by the Chairperson of the Governing Body of the College out of the panel of five names, preferably from minority communities, recommended by the Vice Chancellor from the list of subject experts approved by the relevant statutory body of the College.

- 6. An academician representing SC/ST/OBC/ Minority/Women/Differently-abled categories, if any pf candidates representing these categories is the applicant, to be nominated by the Vice Chancellor, if any of the above members of the selection committee do not belong to that category.
- (b) The quorum for the meeting should be five of which at least two must be from out of the three subject-experts

#### **College Principal**

- (a) The Selection Committee for the post of College Principal shall have the following composition:
  - 1. Chairperson of the Governing Body as Chairperson.
  - 2. Two members of the Governing Body of the college to be nominated by the Chairperson of whom one shall be an expert in academic administration.
  - 3. One nominee of the Vice Chancellor who shall be a Higher Education expert. In case of Colleges notified/declared as minority educational institutions, one nominee of the Chairperson of the College from out of a panel of five names, preferably from minority communities, recommended by the Vice-Chancellor of the affiliating university of whom one should be a subject expert.
  - 4. Three experts consisting of the Principal of a college, a Professor **and an** accomplished educationist not below the rank of a Professor {to be nominated by the Governing Body of the college) out of a panel of six experts approved by the relevant statutory body of the university concerned.
  - 5. An academician representing SC/ST/OBC/Minority/Women/Differently-abled categories, if any of candidates representing these categories is the applicant, to be nominated by the Vice Chancellor, if any of the above members of the selection committee do not belong to that category.

- (b) At least five members, including two experts, should constitute the quorum.
- (c) All the selection procedures of the selection committee shall be **completed** on the day of the selection committee meeting itself, wherein, minutes are **recorded** along with the scoring proforma and recommendation made on the basis of **merit with** the list of selected and waitlisted candidates/Panel of names in order of **merit**, duly signed by all members of the selection committee.
- (d) The term of appointment of the college principal shall be FIVE years with eligibility for reappointment for one more term only after a similar selection committee process.

Selection Committees for the posts of Directors, Deputy Directors, Assistant Directors of Physical Education and Sports, Librarians, Deputy Librarians and Assistant Librarians shall be the same as that of Professor, Associate Professor and Assistant Professor respectively, except that the concerned expert in Physical Education and Sports **or** Sports Administration or Library, practicing Librarian/Physical Director, as the case may be, shall be associated with the Selection Committee as one of the subject experts.

#### **SELECTION PROCEDURES:**

The overall selection procedure shall incorporate transparent, objective and **credible** methodology of analysis of the merits and credentials of the applicants **based on** weightages given to the performance of the candidate in different **relevant dimensions** and his/her performance on a scoring system proforma, based on **the Academic** Performance Indicators (API) as provided in this Regulations in **Tables I to** IX of Appendix III.

In order to make the system more credible, universities may assess **the ability for** teaching and/or research aptitude through a seminar or lecture in **a class room situation** or discussion on the capacity to use latest technology in teaching **and research at the** interview stage. These procedures can be followed for both direct **recruitment arid CAS** promotions wherever selection committees are prescribed in **these Regulations.** 

The Universities shall adopt these Regulations for selection **committees and selection** procedures through their respective statutory **bodies incorporating the Academic** Performance Indicator (API) based Performance **Based Appraisal System (PBAS) at the** institutional level for University Departments and their Constituent colleges/ **affiliated** colleges (Government/Government-aided/Autonomous/ Private Colleges) to **be followed** transparently in all the selection processes An'indicative PBAS template proforma for direct recruitment and for Career Advancement Schemes (CAS) based on API based PBAS shall also be sent separately by the UGC to the universities. The universities may adopt the template proforma or may devise their own self-assessment cum performance appraisal forms for teachers in strict adherence to the API criteria based PBAS prescribed in these Regulations.

In all the Selection Committees of direct recruitment of teachers and other academic staff in universities and colleges provided herein, an academician representing Scheduled Caste/Scheduled Tribe/OBC/Minority/Women/Differently-abled categories, if any of candidates representing these categories is the applicant and if any of the members of the selection committee do not belong to that category, shall be nominated by the Vice Chancellor or Acting Vice Chancellor of the University, and in case of a college Vice Chancellor or Acting Vice Chancellor of the University to which the college is affiliated to. The academician, so nominated for this purpose, shall be one level above the cadre level of the applicant, and such nominee shall ensure that the norms of the Central Government or concerned State Government, in relation to the categories mentioned above, are strictly followed during the selection process.

(i) Besides the indexed publications documented by various discipline-specific databases, the University concerned shall draw through committee(s) of subject experts and ISBN / ISSN experts: (a) a comprehensive list of National /Regional level journals of quality in the concerned subject(s); and (b) a comprehensive list of Indian language journals / periodicals / official publication volumes of language bodies and upload them on the University website which are to be updated periodically.

(ii) In respect of Indian language publications, equivalence in quality shall be prescribed for universities located in a State by a Co-ordination Committee of experts to be constituted by the Chancellor of the concerned State University.

(iii) At the time of assessing the quality of publications of the candidates during their appointments/promotions, the selection committees shall have to be provided with the above two lists which could be considered by the selection committees along with the other discipline-specific databases.

(iv) The UGC shall constitute a Committee as soon as practicable, in so far as acceptability of the (list of) Indian language journals so developed by Universities / States, to arrive at equivalence in quality of such publications with otherwise accepted and recognized journals.

The process of selection of Associate Professor should involve inviting the bio-data with the duly filled Performance Based Appraisal System (PBAS) proforma developed by the respective universities based on the API criteria provided in this Regulation and template separately provided. Without prejudice, to the requirements provided for selection of Associate Professor under this Regulation, the prescription of research publications for promotion from the post of Assistant Professor to Associate Professor in colleges shall be as follows:

- (a) For those who possess a Ph.D. Degree, a minimum of one publication made during the period of service as Assistant Professor;
- (b) for those with a M.Phil. Degree, a minimum of two publications made during the period of service as Assistant Professor; and
- (c) for those without Ph.D. or M.Phil, degree, at least three publications during the period of service as Assistant Professor.

*Provided* that in so far as teachers in Universities are concerned, three publications shall be required to be submitted ior all the three categories mentioned above for consideration of promotion from Assistant Professor to Associate Professor.

*Provided* further that such publications shall be provided to the subject experts for assessment before the interview and the evaluation score of the publications provided by the experts shall be factored into the weightage scores while finalizing the outcome of selection by the selection committee.

The process of selection of Professor shall involve inviting the bio-data with duly filled Performance Based Appraisal System (PBAS) proforma developed by the respective universities based on the API criteria based PBAS set out in this Regulation and reprints of five major publications of the candidates.

*Provided* that such publications submitted by the candidate shall have been published subsequent to the period from which the teacher was placed in the Assistant Professor stage-ll.

*Provided* further that such publications shall be provided to the subject experts for assessment before the interview and the evaluation of the publications by the experts shall be factored into the weightage scores while finalizing the outcome of selection.

In the case of selection of Professors who are from outside the academic stream and are considered under Clause 4.1.0 (B), the universities' statutory bodies must lay down clear and transparent criteria and procedures so that only outstanding professionals who can contribute substantially to the university knowledge system are selected in any discipline as per the requirements.

The Academic Performance Indicator (API) scoring system in the process of selection of Principal shall be similar to that of directly recruited College Professors. In addition; the selection committee shall assess the following dimensions with the weightages given below:

- a. Assessment of aptitude for teaching, research and administration (20%);
- b. Ability to communicate clearly and effectively (10%);
- c. Ability to plan institutional programmes, analyze and discuss curriculum development and delivery, research support and college development/ administration (20%);
- d. Ability to deliver lecture programmes to be assessed by requiring the candidate to participate in a group discussion or exposure to a class room situation by a lecture (10%); and
- e. Analysis of the merits and credentials of the candidates on the basis of the Performance Based Appraisal System (PBAS) proforma developed by the

affiliating University based on these Regulations (deduced to 40% of the total API score).

In the selection process for posts involving different nature of responsibilities in certain disciplines/areas, such as Music and Fine Arts, Visual arts and Performing arts, Physical education and Library, greater emphasis may be laid on the nature of deliverables indicated against each of the posts in these Regulations which need to be taken up by the concerned institution while developing API based PBAS proforma for both direct recruitment and CAS promotions.

The Internal Quality Assurance Cell (IQAC) shall be established in all Universities/Colleges as per the UGC/ National Assessment Accreditation Council (NAAC) guidelines with the Vice Chancellor, as Chairperson (in the case of universities), and Principal, as Chairperson (in case of colleges). The IQAC shall act as the documentation and record-keeping Cell for the institution including assistance in the development of the API criteria based PBAS proforma using the indicative template separately developed by UGC. The IQAC may also introduce, wherever feasible, the student feedback system as per the NAAC guidelines on institutional parameters without incorporating the component of students' assessment of individual teachers in the PBAS. While the API:

(a) Tables I and III of Appendix III are applicable to the selection of

Professors/ Associate Professors /Assistant Professors in universities and colleges;

(b) Tables IV, V and VI of Appendix III are applicable to Directors/ Deputy Directors/Assistant Directors of Physical Education and Sports; and

(c) Tables VII, VHI and IX of Appendix III are applicable to Librarians/ Deputy Librarians and Assistant Librarians for both direct recruitment as well as Career Advancement

Promotions,

the ratio / percentage of minimum requirement of category-wise API Score to each of the cadres shall vary from those for university teachers and for UG/PG College Teachers, as given in these Tables of Appendix-III,

The minimum norms of Selection Committees and Selection Procedures as well as API score requirements for the above cadres, either through direct recruitment or through Career Advancement Schemes Regulations, shall be similar. However, since teachers recruited directly can be from different backgrounds and institutions, Table II(c) of Appendix III provides norms for direct recruitment of teachers to different cadres, while Tables II (a) and Table II(b) provide for CAS promotions of teachers in universities and colleges respectively, which accommodate these differences.

In order to remedy the difficulties of collecting retrospective information and to facilitate the implementation of these regulations from 31-12-2008 in the CAS Promotion, the API based PBAS will be progressively and prospectively rolled out. Accordingly, the PBAS based on the API scores of categories I and II as mentioned in these tables is to be implemented for one year, initially based on the existing systems in universities / colleges for one year only with the minimum annual scores as depicted in Table II (a) and II (b) for university and college teachers, or by Librarian/Physical Education and Sports cadres as depicted in Tables V(a) and V (b), Tables VIII(a) and VIII (b) respectively. This annualized API scores can then be compounded progressively as and when the teacher becomes eligible for CAS promotion to the next cadre. Thus, if a teacher is considered for CAS promotion in 2010, one year API scores for 2009-10 alone will be required for assessment. In case of a teacher being considered for CAS promotion in 2011, two years average of API scores for these categories will be required for assessment and so on leading progressively for the complete assessment period. For Category III (research and academic contributions), API scores for this category will be applied for the entire assessment period.

A teacher who wishes to be considered for promotion under CAS may submit in writing to the university/college, with three months in advance of the due date, that he/she fulfils all qualifications under CAS and submit to the university/college the Performance Based Appraisal System proforma as evolved by the concerned university duly

supported by all credentials as per the API guidelines set out in these Regulations. In order to avoid delays in holding Selection Committee meetings in various positions under CAS, the University/College should immediately initiate the process of screening/selection, and shall complete the process within six months from the date of application. Further, in order to avoid any hardships, candidates who fulfill all other criteria mentioned in these Regulations, as on 31 December, 2008 and till the date on which this Regulation is notified, can be considered for promotion from the date, on or after 31 December, 2008, on which they fulfill these eligibility conditions, provided as mentioned above.

Candidates who do not fulfill the minimum score requirement under the API Scoring System proposed in the Regulations as per Tables II(a and b) of Appendix III or those who obtain less than 50% in the expert assessment of the selection process will have to be reassessed only after a minimum period of one year. The date of promotion shall be the date on which he/she has successfully got re-assessed.

The Selection Committee specifications as delineated in Clauses 5.1.0 to 5.1.7 are applicable to all direct recruitments of Faculty Positions and Career Advancement promotions of Assistant Professor to Associate Professor and to that of Associate Professor to Professor.

CAS promotions from a lower grade to a higher grade of Assistant Professor shall be conducted by a "Screening cum Evaluation Committee" adhering to the criteria laid out as API score in PBAS in the Tables of Appendix-III.

The "Screening cum Evaluation Committee" for CAS promotion AssistantProfessors/equivalent cadres in Librarians/Physical Education from one AGP to the other higher AGP shall consist of:

## For University teachers:

- a. The Vice Chancellor as the Chairperson of the Selection Committee;
- b. The Dean of the concerned Faculty;
- c. The Head of the Department /Chairperson of the School; and
- d. One subject expert in the concerned subject nominated by the Vice Chancellor

from the University panel of experts.

# **For College teachers:**

- a. The Principal of the college;
- b. Head of the concerned department from the college;
- c. Two subject experts in the concerned subject nominated by the Vice Chancellor

from the university panel of experts;

The quorum for these committees in both categories mentioned above shall be three including the one subject expert/ university nominee need to be present.

The Screening cum Evaluation Committee on verification/evaluation of API score secured by the candidate through the 'PBAS' methodology designed by the respective university based on these Regulations and as per the minimum requirement specified, (a) in Tables II and III for each of the cadre of Assistant Professor; (b) in Tables V and VI for each of the cadre pf Physical Education and Sports; and (c) in Tables VIII and IX for each of the cadre of Librarians shall recommend to the Syndicate/ Executive Council /Board of Management of the University about the suitability for the promotion of the candidate(s) under CAS for implementation.

All the selection procedures outlined above, shall be completed on the day of the selection committee meeting, wherein the minutes are recorded along with PBAS scoring proforma and recommendation made on the basis of merit and duly signed by all members of the selection committee in the minutes.

CAS promotions being a personal promotion to the incumbent teacher holding a substantive sanctioned post, on superannuation of the individual incumbent, the said post shall revert back to its original cadre. The incumbent teacher must be on the role and active service of the Universities/Colleges on the date of consideration by the Selection Committee for Selection/CAS Promotion.

Candidates shall offer themselves for assessment for promotion, if they fulfill the minimum API scores indicated in the appropriate API system tables by submitting an application and the required PBAS proforma. They can do so three months before the due date if they consider themselves eligible. Candidates who do not consider themselves eligible can also apply at a later date. In any event, the University concerned shall send a general circular twice a year calling for applications for CAS promotions from eligible candidates.

In the final assessment, if the candidates do not either fulfill the minimum API scores in the criteria as per PBAS proforma or obtain less than 50% in expert assessment, wherever applicable, such candidates will be reassessed only after a minimum period of one year.

(a) If a candidate applies for promotion on completion of the minimum eligibility period and is successful, the date of promotion will be from that of minimum period of eligibility.

(b) If, however, the candidates find that he/she fulfills the eligibility conditions at a later date and applies on that date and is successful, his/her promotion will be effected from that date of application fulfilling the criteria.

(c) If the candidate does not succeed in the first assessment, but succeeds in the eventual assessment, his/her promotion will be deemed to be from the later date of successful assessment.

# STAGES OF PROMOTION UNDER CAREER ADVANCEMENT SCHEME OF INCUMBENT AND NEWLY APPOINTED ASSISTANT PROFESSORS/ ASSOCIATE PROFESSORS/PROFESSORS

Entry level Assistant Professors (Stage 1) would be eligible for promotion under the Career Advancement Scheme (CAS) through two successive stages (stage 2 and Stage 3), provided they are assessed to fulfill the eligibility and performance criteria as laid out in Clause 6.3. of this Regulation.

An entry level Assistant Professor, possessing Ph. D. Degree in the relevant discipline shall be eligible, for moving to the next higher grade (stage 2) after completion of four years service as Assistant Professor.

An entry level Assistant Professor possessing M.Phil. Degree or post-graduate Degree in professional courses, approved by the relevant statutory body, such as LL.M. / M.Tech., etc. shall be eligible for the next higher grade (stage 2) after completion of five years service as Assistant Professor.

An entry level Assistant Professor who does not have Ph.D. or M.Phil, or a Master's Degree in the relevant professional course, shall be eligible for the next higher grade (stage 2) only after completion of six years service as Assistant Professor.

The upward movement from the entry level grade (stage 1) to the next higher grade (stage 2) for all Assistant Professors shall be subject to their satisfying the API based PBAS conditions laid down by the UGC in this Regulation.

Assistant Professors who have completed five years of service in the second grade (stage 2) shall be eligible, subject to meeting the API based PBAS requirements laid down by these Regulations, to move up to next higher grade (stage 3).

Assistant Professors completing three years of teaching in third grade (stage 3) shall be eligible, subject to the qualifying conditions and the API based PBAS requirements prescribed by these Regulations, to move to the next higher grade (stage 4) and to be designated as Associate Professor.

Associate Professor completing three years of service in stage 4 and possessing a Ph.D. Degree in the relevant discipline shall be eligible to be appointed and designated as Professor and be placed in the next higher grade (stage 5), subject to (a) satisfying the required credit points as per API based PBAS methodology provided in Table 1-III of Appendix IV

stipulated in these Regulations, and (b) an assessment by a duly constituted selection committee as suggested for the direct recruitment of Professor. *Provided* that no teacher, other than those with a Ph.D., shall be promoted or appointed

as Professor. In the case of Associate Professors in Colleges, promotion to the post of Professor under CAS shall be further subject to Clause 6.5.1 and 6.5.2 of this Regulation.

Ten percent of the positions of Professors in a university, with a minimum of ten years of teaching and research experience as professor either in the pre-revised scale of Professor's pay or the revised scale pay will be eligible for promotion to the higher grade of Professorship (stage 6), on satisfying the required API score as per Tables I and II through the PBAS methodology stipulated in these Regulations through a duly constituted Expert committee, and such teachers promoted to the higher grade shall continue to be designated as 'Professor'. As this AGP elevation for Professor is applicable to only University departments, additional credentials are to be evidenced by:

(a) post-doctoral research outputs of high standard;

(b) awards / honours /and recognitions;

(c) Additional research degrees like D.Sc, D.Litt., LID, etc.; patents and IPR

on products and processes developed / technology transfer achieved in the case of teachers in science and technology.

The selection is to be conducted by the university by receiving duly filled PBAS proformas from eligible professors based on seniority, three times in number of the available vacancies in each faculty. In case the number of candidates available is less than three times the number of vacancies, the zone of consideration will be limited to the actual number of candidates available. The assessment process shall be through an Expert-Committee evaluation of all credentials submitted as stipulated in Table-II(A) of Appendix-III for teachers in University departments. No separate interview need to be conducted for this category.

Discretionary award of advance increments for those who enter the profession as Associate Professors or Professors with higher merit, high number of research publications and experience at the appropriate level, shall be within the competence of the appropriate authority of the concerned University or recruiting institution based on the recommendations of selection committee(s) while negotiating with individual candidates in the context of the merits of each case, taking into account the pay structure of other teachers in the faculty and other merit- specific factors. Discretionary award of advance increments is not applicable to those entering the profession as Assistant Professor/Assistant Librarian/Assistant Director of Physical Education and Sports and to those who are entitled for grant of advance increments for having acquired Ph. D., M. Phil, M.Tech., etc. However, those entering service as Assistant Professor/Assistant Librarian/Assistant Director of Physical Education and Sports with postdoctoral teaching/research experience after Ph.D. and proven credentials may be eligible for discretionary award of advanced increments to be decided and recorded by the selection committee in its minutes.

#### PROFESSORS IN UNDER GRADUATE AND POST GRADUATE COLLEGES:

(i) Ten percent of the number of the posts of Associate Professor in an Under Graduate College shall be that of Professors and shall be subject to the same criterion for selection / appointment as that of Professors in Universities, *Provided* that there shall be no more than one post of Professor in each Department; *Provided* further that one-fourth (25%) of the posts of Professor in Under Graduate Colleges shall be directly recruited or filled on deputation by eligible teachers and the remaining three-fourths (75%) of posts of Professors shall be filled by CAS promotion from among eligible Associate Professors of the relevant department of the Under Graduate College.

For avoidance of doubt, it is clarified that sanctioned posts include the posts approved under both direct recruitment and CAS promotion.

(ii) Identification of posts of Professor in an Under Graduate College for being filled through direct recruitment / deputation shall be carried out by the affiliating/concerned University acting in consultation with the College. Where the number of posts of Professor worked out as a

percentage of the number of posts of Associate Professor for CAS promotion or direct recruitment / deputation is not an integer, the same shall be rounded off to the next higher integer.

(iii) The selection process is to be conducted by the university by receiving PBAS proformas from eligible Associate Professors based on seniority and three times in number of the available vacancies. In case the number of candidates available is less than three times the number of vacancies, the zone of consideration will be limited to the actual number of candidates available. The selection shall be conducted through the API scoring system with PBAS methodology and selection committee process stipulated in these Regulations for appointment of Professors. For direct recruitment of the 25% of the posts, the 'Rota-Quota system shall be followed starting with promotions and the direct recruitment quota shall be rotated in an alphabetical order.

There shall be one post of Professor in each Department of a Post-Graduate College which shall be subject to the same criterion for selection / appointment as that of Professors in Universities, provided that one-fourth (25%) of the posts of Professor shall be filled on deputation/direct recruitment from among eligible teachers and the remaining three-fourths (75%) of posts shall be filled through merit promotion from among the eligible Associate Professors in the relevant department of the Post-Graduate college. Identification of posts of Professor in a Post-Graduate College for being filled through direct recruitment/deputation shall be carried out by the affiliating/concerned University acting in consultation with the College. The decision regarding whether the posts of professor will be for CAS promotion or direct recruitment/deputation shall be within the competence of the University acting in consultation with the College. Where the number of posts of professor for CAS promotion or direct recruitment/deputation shall be within the competence of the University acting in consultation worked out as a percentage of the total number of posts in a Post Graduate College is not an integer, the same shall be rounded off to the next higher integer.

The selection process is to be conducted by the university by receiving PBAS proformas from eligible Associate Professors based on seniority and three times in number of the available vacancies. In case the number of candidates available is less than three times the number of vacancies, the zone of consideration will be limited to the actual number of candidates available. The selection shall be conducted through the API scoring system with PBAS methodology, selection committee process stipulated in these Regulations for appointment of Professors. For direct recruitment of the 25% of the posts, the 'Rota-Quota System' shall be followed starting with promotion and the direct recruitment quota shall be rotated in an alphabetical order.

# STAGES OF PROMOTION UNDER THE CAREER ADVANCEMENT SCHEME FOR ASSISTANT LIBRARIANS, ETC.

Assistant University Librarian / College Librarian in the entry level grade, possessing Ph.D. in Library Science, after completing service of four years in the lowest grade, if otherwise eligible as per API scoring system and PBAS methodology laid down by the UGC in these Regulations, shall be eligible for the higher grade (stage 2).

Assistant Librarian / College Librarian in the entry level grade, not possessing Ph.D. but only M.Phil, in Library Science, after completing service of five years in the lowest grade, if otherwise eligible as per API scoring system and PBAS methodology laid down by the UGC in these Regulations, shall become eligible for the next higher grade (stage 2).

Assistant Librarian / College Librarian in the entry level grade, without the relevant Ph.D. or M.Phil, after completing six years in the lowest grade, if otherwise eligible as per API scoring system and PBAS methodology laid down by the UGC in these Regulations, shall become eligible for the next higher grade (stage 2).

On completion of service of five years, Assistant Librarian (Sr. Scale) / College Librarian(Sr. Scale) shall be eligible for the post of Deputy Librarian/ equivalent posts and being placed in the next higher grade (stage 3), subject to their fulfilling other conditions of eligibility (such as Ph.D. Degree, etc. for Deputy Librarian) as per API scoring system based PBAS methodology laid down by the UGC for CAS promotion in these Regulations. They shall be designated as Deputy Librarian / Assistant Librarian (Selection Grade), as the case may be.

After completing three years in the above grade, Deputy Librarians /equivalent positions shall move to the next higher grade (stage 4), subject to fulfilling other conditions of eligibility as per API scoring system and PBAS methodology laid down by the UGC for CAS promotion in these Regulations.

# STAGES OF PROMOTION UNDER CAREER ADVANCEMENT SCHEME FOR PHYSICAL EDUCATION AND SPORTS PERSONNEL

Assistant DPE&S in the entry level grade/College DPE&S, at the entry level grade, possessing Ph.D. in Physical Education, after completing service of four years in the entry level stage (stage 1), and if otherwise eligible as per API scoring system and PBAS methodology prescribed by the UGC for CAS promotion in these Regulations, shall become eligible for the next higher grade (stage 2).

Assistant DPE&S/College DPE&S in the entry level grade, possessing M.Phil, in Physical Education, after completing service of the five years in the entry level stage (stage 1), and if otherwise eligible as per API scoring system and PBAS methodology prescribed by the UGC for CAS promotion in these Regulations, shall become eligible for the next higher grade (stage 2).

Assistant DPE&S/ College DPE&S in the entry level grade, without the relevant Ph.D. and M.Phil, shall, after completing service of six years as Assistant DPE&S/College DPE&S in the entry level stage, and if otherwise eligible as per API scoring system and PBAS

After completing service of five years in the second stage and subject to satisfying API scoring system and PBAS methodology prescribed by the UGC in these Regulations, Assistant DPE&S (Senior Scale) / College DPE&S (Senior scale) shall be promoted to the next higher grade (stage 3). They shall be designated as Deputy DPE&S/ Assistant DPE&S (Selection Grade) / College DPE&S (Selection Grade), as the case may be.

After completing service of three years in stage 3 and subject to satisfying API/ scoring system and PBAS methodology prescribed by the UGC in these Regulations, Deputy DPE&S/Assistant DPE&S (Selection Grade) College DPE&S (Selection Grade) shall move to the next higher grade (stage 4). They shall continue to be designated as Deputy DPE&S/Assistant DPE&S (Selection Grade) / College DPE&S (Selection Grade).

The Schedule annexed to these Regulations outlines the Pay scales, Designations and stages of promotions under CAS of incumbent and newly appointed teachers and equivalent positions in the Library and Physical Education and Sports cadres in Central Universities and colleges thereunder and Institutions deemed to be Universities whose maintenance expenditure is met by the UGC. methodology prescribed by the UGC for CAS promotion in these Regulations, shall become eligible for the next higher grade (stage 2).

The Government Nominee shall be included in the Selection Committee for initial appointments and all direct recruitments of Teachers including Principals in Private Aided Colleges. The restrictions and conditions prescribed above shall be applicable for the colleges/institutions recognized under the UGC Act. In respect of all other Colleges the existing provisions of the Statutes will be applicable.

#### **AMENDMENT PROPOSAL-3**

"That, in Chapter 2 "Conditions of Service of Teachers in Private Colleges", Statute 6 "Selection Committee for Teaching Staff of Private Engineering Colleges" and Statute 7" Quorum for Meetings of the Selection Committee in Private Engineering Colleges" may be deleted.

<u>Statute 6 "Selection Committee for Teaching Staff of Private Engineering Colleges" may</u> <u>be deleted.</u>

<u>Statute 7 " Quorum for Meetings of the Selection Committee in Private Engineering</u> Colleges" may be deleted.

#### AMENDMENT PROPOSAL- 4

"That, in Chapter 2 "Conditions of Service of Teachers in Private Colleges", Statute 11 "First Appointment of a Teacher" may be modified as follows:

# <u>"The first Appointment of a Teacher in a Private Arts/ Science College shall be as</u> prescribed in the UGC Regulations from time to time".

# AMENDMENT PROPOSAL-5

"That, in Chapter 2 "Conditions of Service of Teachers in Private Colleges", Statute 12 "Age limits for Direct Appointment" may be modified as follows:

The age limit for direct appointment of teachers shall be governed by D.O letters, Circulars and Government Orders issued by the Government in tune with UGC Regulations from time to time".

#### AMENDMENT PROPOSAL-6

"That, in Chapter 2 "Conditions of Service of Teachers in Private Colleges", Statute 17 "*Restriction of other Activities*" the following may be added:

# CODE OF PROFESSIONAL ETHICS

# I. TEACHERS AND THEIR RESPONSIBILITIES:

Whoever adopts teaching as a profession assumes the obligation to conduct himself / herself in accordance with the ideal of the profession, A teacher is constantly under the scrutiny of his students and the society at large. Therefore, every teacher should see that there is no incompatibility between his precepts and practice. The national ideals of education which have already been set forth and which he/she should seek to inculcate among students must be his/her own ideals. The profession further requires that the teachers should be calm, patient and communicative by temperament and amiable in disposition. Teachers should :

(i)Adhere to a responsible pattern of conduct and demeanour expected of them by the community;

- (ii) Manage their private affairs in a manner consistent with the dignity of the profession;
- (iii) Seek to make professional growth continuous through study and research;
- (iv) Express free and frank opinion by participation at professional meetings, seminars, conferences etc. towards the contribution of knowledge;
- (v) Maintain active membership of professional organizations and strive to improve education and profession through them;
- (vi) Perform their duties in the form of teaching, tutorial, practical, seminar and research work conscientiously and with dedication;
- (vii) Co-operate and assist in carrying out functions relating to the educational responsibilities of the college and the university such as: assisting in appraising applications for admission, advising and counseling students as well as assisting the conduct of university and college examinations, including supervision, invigilation and evaluation; and
- (viii) Participate in extension, co-curricular and extra-curricular activities including community service.

### II. TEACHERS AND THE STUDENTS Teachers should:

- (i) Respect the right and dignity of the student in expressing his/her opinion;
- (i)Respect the right and dignity of the student in expressing his/her opinion.
- (ii) Deal justly and impartially with students regardless of their religion, caste, political, economic, social and physical characteristics;
- (ii) Recognize the difference in aptitude and capabilities among students and strive to meet their individual needs;
- (iv) Encourage students to improve their attainments, develop their personalities and at the same time contribute to community welfare;
- (v) Inculcate among students scientific outlook and respect for physical labour and ideals of democracy, patriotism and peace;
- (vi) Be affectionate to the students and not behave in a vindictive manner towards any of them for any reason;
- (vii) Pay attention to only the attainment of the student in the assessment of merit;
- (viii) Make themselves available to the students even beyond their class hours and help and guide students without any remuneration or reward;
- (ix) Aid students to develop an understanding of our national heritage and national goals; and
- (x) Refrain from inciting students against other students, colleagues or administration.

#### III. TEACHERS AND COLLEAGUES

#### Teachers should:

- (i) Treat other members of the profession in the same manner as they themselves wish to be treated;
- (ii) Speak respectfully of other teachers and render assistance for professional betterment;
- (iii) Refrain from lodging unsubstantiated allegations against colleagues to higher authorities; and

(iv) Refrain from allowing considerations of caste, creed, religion, race or sex in their professional endeavour.

# IV. TEACHERS AND AUTHORITIES:

# Teachers should:

 (i) Discharge their professional responsibilities according to the existing rules and adhere to procedures and methods consistent with their profession in initiating steps through their own institutional bodies and/or professional organizations for change of any such rule detrimental to the professional interest;

(ii) Refrain from undertaking any other employment and commitment including private tuitions and coaching classes which are likely  $t^*$ > interfere with their professional responsibilities;

- (iii) Co-operate in the formulation of policies of the institution by accepting various offices and discharge responsibilities<sup>^</sup> which such offices may demand;
- (iv) Co-operate through their organizations in the formulation of policies of the other institutions and accept offices;
- (v) Co-operate with the authorities for the betterment of the institutions keeping in view the interest and in conformity with dignity of the profession;
- (vi) Should adhere to the conditions of contract;
- (vii) Give and expect due notice before a change of position is made; and

(viii) Refrain from availing themselves of leave except on unavoidable grounds and as far as practicable -vith prior intimation, keeping in view their particular responsibility for completion of academic schedule.

# V. TEACHERS AND NON-TEACHING STAFF:

- (i) Teachers should treat the non-teaching staff as colleagues and equal partners in a cooperative undertaking, within every educational institution; and
- (ii) Teachers should help in the function of joint staff-councils covering both teachers and the non-teaching staff.

#### VI. TEACHERS AND GUARDIANS

#### **Teachers should:**

(i) Try to see through teachers' bodies and organizations, that institutions maintain contact with the guardians, their students, send reports of their performance to the guardians whenever necessary and meet the guardians in meetings convened for the purpose for mutual exchange of ideas and for the benefit of the institution.

# VII. TEACHERS AND SOCIETY

#### **Teachers should:**

- (i) Recognize that education is a public service and strive to keep the public informed of the educational programmes which are being provided;
- (ii) Work to improve education in the community and strengthen the community's moral and intellectual life;
- (iii) Be aware of social problems and take part in such activities as would be conducive to the progress of society and hence the country as a whole;
- (iv) Perform the duties of citizenship, participate in community activities and shoulder responsibilities of public offices;
- (v) Refrain from taking part in or subscribing to or assisting in any way activities which tend to promote feeling of hatred or enmity among different communities, religions or linguistic groups but actively work for National Integration.

All Code of Conduct as prescribed by the UGC Regulations from time to time is applicable to all teachers of the colleges/institutions recognized under the UGC Act.

# **AMENDMENT PROPOSAL-7**

"That, in Chapter 2 "Conditions of Service of Teachers in Private Colleges", Statute 22 "Scale of Pay" may modified as follows:

#### <u>The Scale of pay in Private/Aided Colleges shall be determined by the pay revision orders</u> and notification issued by the MHRD, Government of India from time to time" AMENDMENT PROPOSAL-8

#### 16

"That, in Chapter 2 "Conditions of Service of Teachers in Private Colleges", Statute 23 "Increments "- the following may be added together with the existing provisions of the Statutes.

# <u>The Rate of Increment shall be determined by the UGC Pay Revision Orders and</u> notification issued by the MHRD, Government of India from time to time".

# AMENDMENT PROPOSAL-9

"That, in Chapter 2 "Conditions of Service of Teachers in Private Colleges", Statute 25 "Grant of Leave" may be modified by adding the following with the existing provisions.

"The conditions prescribed for granting of all types of leave shall be governed by the orders of the Government from time to time and in accordance with the provisions of KSR and other rules framed by the Government in line with the UGC Regulations".

#### **AMENDMENT PROPOSAL-10**

"That, in Chapter 2 "Conditions of Service of Teachers in Private Colleges", Statute 31 "Payment of Honorarium" may be modified as the follows:

# <u>The teachers in Private Aided Colleges who are put in charge of duties of Principal shall be</u> <u>granted an honorarium which are determined by the Government of Kerala from timeto time".</u>

AMENDMENT PROPOSAL-11 "That, in Chapter 2 "Conditions of Service of Teachers in Private Colleges", Statute

34(1)"Seniority List" the following may be added as the last sentence :

# <u>The inter-se seniority in a direct recruitment shall be determined by the rank position in the</u> rank list published by the Educational Agency".

# AMENDMENT PROPOSAL-12

"That, in Chapter 2 "Conditions of Service of Teachers in Private Colleges", Statute 40(a)"Conditions of service of teachers in Unaided Colleges" the following may be added :

<u>The qualification of Principals appointed in Unaided Colleges shall be the same as the</u> <u>qualifications for the appointment of Principals as prescribed in UGC Regulations issued from</u> <u>time to time"</u>

#### AMENDMENT PROPOSAL-13

"That, in Chapter 3 "Conditions of Service of Teachers in Private Colleges", Statute 41 "Qualification for Appointment". may be modified as follows:

<u>The non-clerical staff like Library/Laboratory Assistants, Gasmen/Specimen Collectors,</u> Last Grade Staff who have five year service with S.S.L.C and have passed appropriate test and obtained qualifications prescribed by the Government from time to time."

The above amendment proposal to the Kerala University (Conditions of Service of Teachers and members of Non- Teaching Staff)\_ First Statutes, 1979, in tune with UGC Regulations, 2010 is laid before the Senate as envisaged under section 35(1) of the Kerala University Act, 1974.

The House considered and approved the above proposal to amend the Kerala University (conditions of service of Teachers and Members of Non-Teaching Staff) First Statutes, 1979 in tune with UGC Regulations, 2010, as envisaged under Section 35 (1) of the Kerala University Act 1974.

# 06. UGC Regulations 2018- Implementing and modifying the Statutes and Regulations – Consideration of- reg. (Ac. F II)

The UGC has promulgated the **Regulations on Minimum Qualifications for Appointment** of Teachers and Other Academic Staff in Universities and Colleges and the Measures for the Maintenance of Standards in Higher Education, 2018 vide Govt of India notification dated 18/07/2018.

In this context, it may be noted that, on the basis of the verdict of Hon'ble Supreme Court of India dated 17.07.2018 in disposing the SLP's No. 18938 to 18942/2017, regarding the date of application of the UGC Regulations 2010, filed by the Government of Kerala along with this University, the UGC Regulations 2010 including all Regulatory and Statutory norms are mandatorly applicable whether any material amendment has been brought to the Statutes or not. The University is absolutely following UGC Regulations 2010 in all matters relating to the Academic qualifications prescribed and the mode of selection of teachers. The selection committees prescribed in the Kerala University Statutes 1979 have since been superceded by those prescribed in the UGC Regulations 2010 in respect of the University Departments and Affiliated Colleges included under UGC Act.

It has to be observed at this point that all rules relating to various service conditions of teachers including age of appointment and of super annuation, pay and allowances, leave, posts instituted in Aided Colleges, nature of appointment, re-employment etc are guided by the prevailing Government policy and Service Rules.

The Government of Kerala, vide D.O No. HEDN-C3/137/2017-HEDN dtd. 18.02.2019 has instructed that UGC Regulations 2018, may be implemented with immediate effect. . However, details relating to the adoption of the said Regulations by the State is not forth coming.

The UGC Regulations, 2018 was placed before the meeting of the Academic Council held on 13.03.2019 vide Item No. 68.

The Academic Council considered and resolved to approve the UGC Regulations on Minimum Qualifications for Appointment of Teachers and Other Academic Staff in Universities and Colleges and the Measures for the Maintenance of Standards in Higher Education, 2018 with the following modifications and additions.

- 1. For purpose of direct selection of teachers, a maximum of 20 marks be allotted for interview, in addition to the maximum of 100 marks allocated in the regulations for short listing of candidates.
- 2. Government Nominee shall be mandatory in all selection committees for direct recruitments to Government Aided Private Colleges.
- 3. For purpose of CAS promotion to the post of Associate Professor in Affiliated Aided Colleges, where such posts are borne on the cadre of Assistant Professor, constitution of Selection Committee need not be insisted, and instead Screening cum Evaluation Committee may be instituted.
- 4. The Teachers who are eligible for promotion during the period from 23.02.2016 upto the date of implementation of UGC Regulations 2018 may exercise option either for 2010 or 2018 Regulation.
- 5. Post mentioned as Assistant Director of Physical Education in the regulations shall be known as Assistant Professor. The Academic Council further resolved to approve the PBAS templates in respect of Physical Education.

Hence, the resolution of the Academic Council along with the modifications and additions with regard to UGC Regulations 2018 may be laid before the Senate as provided for in Chapter 39 clause 3 of the Kerala University First Statutes 1979.

The House noted the adoption of the UGC Regulations 2018 by the Academic Council. Further resolved to recommend the proposal for suitable amendments to the Statutes.

#### 07. Creation of Teaching Posts in the Department of Computational Biology and Bioinformatics-Consideration of- reg. (Ad.DI)

Dr.Achuthsankar S Nair, Head(i/c), Department of Computational Biology and Bioinformatics, Kariavattom has submitted a proposal for creating teaching posts in the Department as follows

Professor	-	1
Associate Professor	-	2
Assistant Professor	-	4

The proposal was placed before the Standing Committee of the Syndicate on Staff, Equipments and Buildings for consideration. The Committee considered the matter and recommended to address the Government to accord sanction for the creation of teaching posts in the Department of Computational Biology and Bioinformatics.

The Syndicate held on 12.05.2017, vide Item No.27.94.02, resolved the recommendations of the Standing Committee of the Syndicate on Staff, Equipments and Buildings. Accordingly the matter was addressed to the Government. The financial Commitment for the creation of the posts was also reported to the Government.

As per the Government Order No.23/2019/HEdn dtd.02.02.2019 from Higher Education (B) Department, 7 teaching posts are created in the Department of Computational Biology and Bioinformatics, Kariavattom, University of Kerala as follows

SI No.	Name of Post	No. of Post	Scale of Pay
1.	Professor	1	37400-67000 (10000 AGP)
2.	Associate Professor	2	37400-67000 (9000 AGP)
3.	Assistant Professor	4	15600-39100 (6000 AGP)

The Finance has provided the anticipated annual financial commitment in respect of the proposed posts which is as follows

Professor (1 post)Rs.16,81,966 X 1 = Rs.16,81,966/-Associate Professor (2 posts)Rs.14,61,902 X 2 = Rs.29,23,804/-Assistant Professor (4 posts)Rs.68,67,38 X 4 = Rs.27,46,952/-TOTAL= Rs.73,52,722/-

As per Section 19(2) of the Kerala University Act, 1974, "Save as otherwise expressly provided in this Act, the Senate shall have the following powers, namely: (e)- to institute professorships, readerships, lectureships, and such other teaching or research posts as it may deem necessary".

As per Statute 1 of Chapter-3 of Kerala University First Statutes, 1977, "The Senate shall be competent to institute Professorships, Readerships, Lecturerships and such other teaching and research posts required by the University on the motion of the Syndicate and / or on the proposals of the Academic Council therefore endorsed by the Syndicate".

As ordered by the Vice Chancellor, the matter for creation of 7 teaching posts in the Department of Computational Biology and Bioinformatics, as sanctioned by the Government, is placed before the Senate, along with the Government Order and anticipated financial commitment, for consideration and decision.

The House resolved to approve the creation of seven Teaching posts in the Department of Computational Biology and Bioinformatics.

#### 08. University Teaching Departments – Creation of Additional Teaching Posts – Department of Futures Studies – Consideration of-reg. (Ad.H)

The Professor and Head, Department of Futures Studies proposed to create four teaching positions namely:

\_\_\_\_\_

Professor-1Associate Professor-1Assistant Professor-2

The proposed posts were reported to be essential for meeting the faculty requirement for the M.Sc. Programme in Data Science proposed to commence from the academic year 2019-20.

The Syndicate at its meeting held on 19-02-2019, vide item no.05.05, considered the proposal and resolved that the request be agreed to.

Anticipated annual financial commitment in respect of the proposed posts are as follows:

Professor (1 post)	Rs.1692210 x 1 =	Rs.1692210/-
Associate Professor (1 post)	Rs.1479998 x 1 =	Rs.1479998/-
Assistant Professor (2 posts)	Rs.686738 x 2 =	Rs.1373476/-

TOTAL = Rs.45,45,684/-

The financial commitment has been calculated by taking the minimum basic pay, DA effective from 01-07-2017, HRA & CCA applicable to respective posts.

As per Section 19(2) of the Kerala University Act, 1974, "Save as otherwise expressly provided in this Act, the Senate shall have the following powers, namely: (e)-to institute professorships, readerships, lectureships, and such other teaching or research posts as it may deem necessary".

As per Statute 1 of Chapter-3 of Kerala University First Statutes, 1977, "The Senate shall be competent to institute Professorships, Readerships, Lecturerships and such other teaching and research posts required by the University on the motion of the Syndicate and / or on the proposals of the Academic Council therefore endorsed by the Syndicate."

The request of the Professor and Head, Department of Futures Studies for creation of teaching posts as proposed above and agreed to by the Syndicate, is placed before the Senate for consideration and decision.

The House considered and approved the proposal for creation of additional Teaching posts subject to concurrence of the Government.

The Vice-Chancellor thanked the members for their co-operation.

The meeting was adjourned sine-die at 9.10 a.m.

\_\_\_\_\_

*Sd/-***Registrar-in-Charge**  *Sd/-***Pro-Vice-Chancellor**  *Sd/-*Vice-Chancellor

\_\_\_\_\_

University Buildings, Thiruvananthapuram. 10/04/2019